SAPPER JAMES SAVAGE M.M.
264 – 1st Tunnelling Company

Pyrmont, Sydney, New South Wales was the birthplace of James Savage in 1885 the son of John (died 1905) and Annie (nee Sweeney) Savage.

At the recruiting depot in Sydney (1st Military District) on 9 August, 1915 the single twenty-nine-year-old wood machinist applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the medical examination.  Attestation forms describe him as 177cms (5ft 9¼ins) tall, weighing 72.7kgs (160lbs) with a chest measurement of 94cms (37ins) and a fair complexion with good vision in his hazel eyes and fair hair.  Religion was Roman Catholic.  Next-of-kin nominated was his mother Annie Savage of 370 Jones Street, Ultimo, Sydney.  He then reported to Holdsworthy camp, near Liverpool, NSW where on 25 August, 1915 he signed and took the Oath of Allegiance.
Basic training commenced until 28 October, 1915 when allotted to the Mining Corps at Casula camp, near Liverpool in their establishment phase.  His rank was Sapper with the regimental number 264 in No. 1 Company of the Corps.
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At a civic parade in the Domain, Sydney on Saturday February 19, 1916, a large crowd of relations and friends of the departing Miners lined the four sides of the parade ground.  Sixty police and 100 Garrison Military Police were on hand to keep the crowds within bounds.  The scene was an inspiriting one. On the extreme right flank, facing the saluting base, were companies of the Rifle Club School; next came a detachment of the 4th King’s Shropshire Light Infantry, then the bands of the Light Horse, Liverpool Depot, and the Miners’ on the left, rank upon rank, the Miners’ Battalion.  

The Corps boarded HMAT A38 Ulysses in Sydney, NSW on February 20 and sailed for the European theatre.  Arriving in Melbourne, Victoria on February 22 the Miners camped at Broadmeadows for a stay of 7 days while further cargo was loaded. 

Another parade was held at the Broadmeadows camp on March 1, the Miners’ Corps being inspected by the Governor-General, as Commander-in-Chief of the Commonwealth military forces. 

Leaving Melbourne on March 1, Ulysses arrived at Fremantle, Western Australia on March 7 where a further 53 members were taken on board.  

On Wednesday March 8, 1916 the whole force, with their band and equipment, paraded at Fremantle prior to leaving Victoria Quay at 9.30 o’clock.

The ship hit a reef when leaving Fremantle harbour, stripping the plates for 40 feet and, although there was a gap in the outside plate, the inner bilge plates were not punctured.  The men on board nicknamed her ‘Useless’.  The Miners were off-loaded and sent to the Blackboy Hill Camp where further training was conducted.

The Mining Corps comprised 1303 members at the time they embarked with a Headquarters of 40; No.1 Company – 390; No.2 Company – 380; No.3 Company – 392, and 101 members of the 1st Reinforcements.

Finally departing Fremantle on April 1, Ulysses voyaged via Suez, Port Said and Alexandria in Egypt.  The captain of the ship was reluctant to take Ulysses out of the Suez Canal because he felt the weight of the ship made it impossible to manoeuvre in the situation of a submarine attack.  
The troops were transhipped to HM Transport B.1 Ansonia, then on to Valetta, Malta before disembarking at Marseilles, France on May 5, 1916.  As a unit they entrained at Marseilles on May 7 and detrained on May 11 at Hazebrouck.

A ‘Mining Corps’ did not fit in the British Expeditionary Force, and the Corps was disbanded and three Australian Tunnelling Companies were formed.  The Technical Staff of the Corps Headquarters, plus some technically qualified men from the individual companies, was formed into the entirely new Australian Electrical and Mechanical Mining and Boring Company (AEMMBC), better known as the ‘Alphabetical Company’.

His service continued without incident until leave to England was granted commencing on 6 September, 1916 and admitted from Headquarters, London to the Q.A. Military Hospital, Millbank on 11 September being discharged nine days later.  On the recommendation of the Divisional Medical Officer was granted extension of leave of seven days and when declared fit returned to his unit in France on 27 September re-joining the following day.
Sapper was wounded in action suffering from gas poisoning and shock on 25 April, 1917 at Poperinghe, Belgium and taken to the 3rd Casualty Clearing Station on April 26.  
A brief account of an accidental explosion is as follows:  
“At Hill 60 an untimely and accidental explosion had occurred when a mine charge was being set up in “D” gallery situated in the “sandy layer”.  Little was known but Captain William Percival Avery and Lt Arthur Elton Tandy were preparing the charge and killed instantly. The possible explanation came from an Officer who escaped the explosion because he came back to the Headquarters Dugout to obtain a measuring tape, retold he remembered hearing “We did not test the detonators for continuity” as the 50pound box of Guncotton, the primer for the charge was being arranged.  It was concluded by those experienced in these situations that the disaster was caused by the circuit receiving the test current during checking of the detonators, still assembled in the primer, a “supersensitive” detonator had exploded during the test.  Other probable errors were, they hadn’t put the detonator under a sandbag whilst running the current from the battery to the detonator’s filament or did not use enough current to reach the filament.  Comments at the time described it as a thousand-to-one chance.  

Commanding Officer Major J. Douglas Henry’s report on the incident states that “during a heavy enemy bombardment a minenwerfer exploded in the Officers’ Mess” and Lt Robert Adam Clinton, Proto Officer in charge of the rescue squad in his commentary also said “enemy bombardment, a minenwerfer or heavy shell pierced the Officers’ Dugout Quarters, exploding therein”.  Whether it was human error or enemy gunfire that caused the explosion, the loss of life and destruction were the same.  The layout of the Dugout system was extremely defenceless to an unfortunate situation such as this with the corridors, quarters and common rooms underground, poisonous gasses permeated anywhere it could by the pressure of the discharge.

The Company’s Advanced Headquarters Dugout was shattered allowing sand to collapse into what remained of the area.  The intense toxic force sped down the corridor to the “proto-room” overpowering those there with carbon monoxide and nitrous fumes.  

The Rescuers succeeded in resuscitating the Officers and men found and immediately arranged for them to be quickly transferred to the nearest medical facility.  Due to the enemy bombardment along Marshall Walk the closest service was the A.M.C. Dressing Station at Larchwood where twenty to thirty men were taken with severe symptoms whilst mild cases were treated by the Proto team who had been trained at the 2nd Army’s Proto School for treatment of gaseous poisoning.  The four surviving officers were lucky to escape, with Lts H.H. Carroll and W.S. Jones being recorded among those gassed.”  

He re-joined his unit on June 20, 1917.

Base Records advised his mother on 10 May, 1917 that information had been received to the effect that her son was suffering the effects of gas poisoning and shock.
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His name appeared in the Casualty List published in the:

Mr F. Smith, C.S.M. Censorship Office, Parcels Office, Railway Square wrote to Base Records on 11 June, 1917 on hearing that Sapper Savage was reported in the Casualty List suffering from gas and shell shock.  He would deem it a favour if they would send him particulars as to what hospital he was in, and the seriousness of his case.  Such particulars would relieve his mother for whom he was inquiring.
Base Records replied on June 18 advised that the name of the hospital to which Sapper Savage was admitted was at present unknown there, but letters addressed to him as given would be forwarded to where ever he was located at the date of their arrival.  His disability was not specified as serious and the absence of later reports was indictive that favourable progress was being maintained.  On receipt of further information, it would be forwarded to his mother at Ultimo, NSW.
Disciplinary action was taken for the following:



Offence:
While on Active Service 21/6/17 Drunkenness



Award:

Forfeits 7 day’s pay 23/6/17

He spent a day in hospital sick from 16 to 17 November, 1917.

Blue Chevrons were issued to wear on his uniform for serving twelve months abroad.

He was a witness to a fight in No. 7 hut of the 1st Tunnelling Company on 1 February, 1918 and his statement is as follows:

No. 264 Sapper Savage, J. 1st Aust Tunn. Coy states:

About the hour of 8 p.m. on the night of 1st February 1918, I was present in No. 7 hut of 1st Australian Tunnelling Company’s camp.  Sappers Lally and Kelly, P came into the hut and Crowe came in shortly after.  The next thing I heard Spr. Lally say “I’ll block you Crowe”.  Sappers Lally and Crowe then wrestled and both fell on the floor.  Both broke away and got up, and I heard Spr. Lally say “He’s stabbed me”.  Spr. Lally then fought with Spr. Crowe punching him on the ground.  Some other Sappers asked Lally to show them where he was stabbed.  Then Sapper Lally was removed from the hut.








Sgd. J. Savage

Evidence taken by





Sgd. H. Carroll, Capt.






1st Aust. Tunn. Coy.

He proceeded on leave on 25 February, 1918 and while on leave went sick to AIF Headquarters then admitted to the 1st Aust Auxiliary Hospital at Harefield suffering bronchitis.  Discharged and granted the balance of his leave from March 13.  He proceeded overseas to France from Southampton on March 18 and re-joined his unit in the field.
Sapper was a member of the No. 4 Section that participated in the construction of a Tank Bridge over the Sambre Canal on 4 November, 1918.

The Unit Diary of the 1st Tunnelling Company recorded the following for that period as follows:

NOVEMBER, 1918



BUSIGNY



3rd
Cold and fine No. 2 Section Advance H.Q. moved to St Souplet.  Section H.Q. moved to Sh. 57B W.5.a.7.2.  25 men under Lt Thomson No. 1 Section attached to Capt. Woodward in connection with bridging the Sambre Canal.  No. 2 Section in Advance H.Q. to La Vallee Mulatre.

4th
Fine and cold – stunt started Road Report Centre opened at Molain Bridge No. 1 Capt. Woodward & party successfully constructed Tank Bridge over canal at 51.d.3.A Sh. 57A under heavy enemy fire with casualties of 4 killed and 5 wounded.

Further information on this construction is recorded in Captain O.H. Woodward’s unpublished book My War Story of the Great War:
BRIDGING THE CANAL DE LA SAMBRE DE OISE
“The Bridging was to be carried out at Lock No. 1, situated just ahead of the Village of Rejet de Beaulieu.  The 409th Field Company Royal Engineers were allotted the task of constructing light bridges, to permit the Infantry to cross, and then follow on the Bridges for light transport, while No. 4 Section was entrusted with the task of building a bridge capable of carrying Tanks.
In design the Bridge was very simple.  It consisted of two sets of 10” x 6” rolled steel joists, and in each set there were six joists placed side by side.  Thus, each set of joists in effect gave a solid girder 3 ft. wide and 10 ins. deep.  The two sets were placed at 6ft. 6in. centres, and on these would come the caterpillar treads of the Tanks.  On top of these girders a timber decking was placed, the decking board being 9 inches wide, 3 inches deep, and 10 feet long.  On the bottom of these decking boards cleats were fitted, so that a recess was made into which fitted the two sets of joists.  A guide-rail was placed longitudinally on the decking, one on each side.  Thus with the coping stones removed the decking of the Bridge would be approximately level with the ground from the Lock.

The Lock at which the crossing was to be effected lay to the left of the Rejet de Beaulieu-L’Emertage Road.  The overhead Bridge by which this Road crossed the Canal had been destroyed, so in order to reach the Lock it was necessary to turn off sharply to the left from the Rejet de Beaulieu Road and follow the Tow Path for about 50 yards, until the Lock was reached.  Similarly, after crossing the Lock it was necessary to follow the Tow Path until the road to L’Emertage was reached.  This was a disadvantage as it meant a hair-pin bend.  To the right of the original overhead Bridge the position was difficult, as on each side of the Canal and separated from it by the Tow Path were two Reservoirs, used to adjust the water level in the Canal System.

On the German side of the Lock, and immediately facing it, were three buildings, that on the right facing it, being the Boiler house the middle one, the Pump Room, and the other the Lock-keeper’s residence.  To the left of that section of the Rejet de Beaulieu Road nearest the Canal, the ground was low-lying and comprised an orchard and old field.

The operations will be covered by Artillery, Machine Gun and Stokes Mortar Barrage, which will open the line of Canal at Zero.  The Artillery Barrage will stand on this line for 3 minutes, to allow the storming parties with Bridging material to get close up to the Lock, after which it will lift 100 yards off the Lock but continue to fall within safety on the Eastern bank of the Canal in order to cover Bridging Operations.  It will remain on this line for a further 3 minutes.  The advance of the Bridge Crews to the Lock will also be covered by a Covering Party of 2nd Royal Sussex.

Four 18 pounders have been held off to deal by direct fire, at Zero hour, with the Houses on the Lock.  We reached there at 8 p.m.  The men unloaded our Bridging material from the Pontoon Waggons, the drivers of which were then instructed to retire.  Our next task was to carry our Bridging material to a point about 300 yards from the Lock.  
Try to picture the task.  A pitch-black night with a steady fall of rain, and area of country on which none of us had ever set foot, country filled with shell holes, and about 5 tons of rolled steel joists in 20ft. lengths to be transported over a quarter of a mile before midnight, at which hour all troops were expected to be in their assembly position.  
Each of the girders weighed about 800lbs. and they were carried by 10 men, five on each side.  At this hour the area through which we had to pass was being continually swept by Artillery Fire and occasional bursts of machine gun fire.  The men had to march slowly forward, ensuring that each step was on firm ground before taking the next.  There could be no flinching when a shell burst, no matter how close.  With an 800-pound girder carried on the shoulders a false step or a faltering when a shell burst could easily cause as much damage by broken limbs as a bursting shell would inflict under all these disadvantages, the men worked without a sign of faltering, and just before midnight we had carried all our material to the forward assembly point.

At Zero plus 15 minutes, I went forward with Sergeant Hutchinson, just in time to see Major Findlay, Commanding Officer of the 409th Field Company brilliantly lead his men across the Lock by jumping across on the partly open Lock gates.  With bombs he stormed an enemy Machine Gun crew, who were located in the Boiler House.  It was a magnificent sight and for his brilliant and fearless work Major Findlay eventually was awarded the Victoria Cross.

It was not until 7.30 a.m. that Major Findlay, under whose command we were, considered it safe to commence our task.  Even at this hour the area around the Canal was subjected to terrific bombardment, but fortunately the Machine Guns close handy had been silenced.  We had to pass through the barrage in order to bring our Bridging material forward and the manner in which the men, together with Lieutenants Sawyer and Thomson, moved forward and back through this shell swept area was magnificent.  
As I mentioned before the Lock was the only spot at which a crossing could be effected, and the enemy knowing this concentrated on the area.  On either flank little shelling took place.  With Sergeant Hutchinson I crossed the Lock and we prised off the coping stone.  The launching of the first 20 ft girder across this 17ft. span was a slow job, and we had just got it across when the enemy dropped a shell practically at our feet.  It was a small high velocity shell; of the seven of us on the enemy side of the Canal, three were wounded.  Once the first girder was safely across, the work was much easier, as we were able to slide the other girders across this one.

The Tank Bridge was eventually completed 4½ hours after Zero, and as we did not start until about 2 hours after Zero, we did the work in good time.

At 11 a.m. we were ordered to retire.  We then took stock and found we had lost five killed and five wounded.  The latter had been attended to by the Stretcher Bearers.  We then located the bodies of our dead comrades, found the Padre of the 409th Field Company, and laid them to rest in the Village Cemetery of Rejet de Beaulieu.

The success of the Bridging operations was fully appreciated as the following Special Order of the Day indicates.
SPECIAL ORDER OF THE DAY
by

Major General E.P. Strickland, C.B., C.M.G., D.S.O.,

G.O.C. 1st Division.

The task that the Division was called upon to perform yesterday was one entailing the utmost forethought for every detail, the most careful and precise staff work in all branches, a thorough and precise organization in battalions of the most minute detail, and gallantry, tact, and endurance on the part of all troops engaged.  The complete success of the operations is very greatly due to the skill, ability, rapidity and completeness with which the bridging arrangements were completed and perfected.

I wish to pay special tribute to Lt Colonel C.E.P. Sankey D.S.O., his Field Company Commander, and the Section of the First Australian Tunnelling Company for the part they have played in these operations.  The cool gallantry with which they placed the bridges in position under heavy fire after long and arduous hours of labour was magnificent.  They have very worthily upheld the very high traditions of the Royal Engineers.

I cannot sufficiently express my admiration and thanks to all branches of the staff and to all branches of the staff and to all units in the Division for their unsurpassed efforts culminating in as fine a military achievement as any troops could have carried out.  The Division as a whole has every reason to be more than proud of their record, and they could not do more than uphold, as they have done, the brilliant records of the First Division of the British Army.

Signed:








E.P. Strickland.”
Sapper Savage was one of eleven men recommended for the Military Medal for his bravery in the field on 4 November, 1918 from the 1st Tunnelling Company.
He was with his unit when Peace was declared a week later and the Tunnelling Companies remained on the front as part of the Army of Occupation assisting with rehabilitation of their district by clearing roads and bridges of booby traps and delayed action mines left by the enemy.


Announcement that the Military Medal was awarded to Sapper J. Savage came on 14 December, 1918 by authority IXth Corps Honour Roll No. 728/D.

Leave from France was granted and taken from 25 January to 6 February, 1919.  Furlough Department, Administration Headquarters granted an extension of leave to 15 February and to report to the Orderly Room, Headquarters, London.  Another extension of leave was granted until February 26 and he marched into the 1st Training Brigade at Sutton Veny as ordered to await his voyage home.
After demobilisation Sapper Savage embarked for Australia from Devonport, England on board H.T. Kildonian Castle on 21 March, 1919.  Base Records advised his mother on 14 April he was returning home.  The troopship docked in Sydney (2nd Military District) on 10 May, 1919 and their arrival was reported in the:

He appeared before the Disembarkation Medical Board on arrival and referred to the Garrison Hospital (No. 4 Aust General Hospital, Randwick) for a review on 12 May, 1919 and his Statement of Case reads:




Disability:
Nasal catarrh



Date of disability:
Aug. 1917



Essential facts:
Nasal catarrh Aug. 1917 still troubling him



Present condition:
He has nasal catarrh


Discharge recommended:
No, deferred for treatment



Board fining:

No disability



Working capacity:
Nil


Recommend discharge:
Yes – 16/5/19


Confirmed for discharge:
17/5/19 Sydney.

He married on 2 August, 1919 to Alice M. Andrew with their union registered at Redfern, Sydney.

Military Discharge was issued in Sydney (2nd M.D.) on 17 October, 1919 on termination of his period of enlistment.  Base Records sent a copy to his mother Mrs A. Savage at her Ultimo address on 28th November, 1919 of the extract from the Third Supplement No. 31430 to the London Gazette dated 3 July, 1919, relating to conspicuous services rendered whilst a member of the Aust Imperial Force.

AWARDED THE MILITARY MEDAL

HIS MAJESTY THE KING has been graciously pleased to approve of the award of the Military Medal for bravery in the field to the undermentioned:

No. 264 Sapper J. SAVAGE

The above had been promulgated in Commonwealth of Australia Gazette No. 119, dated 17 October, 1919.

This letter was returned to Base Records about 11 December, 1919 marked “not known” with a notation in pencil on the envelope “try Maroubra, street not known.”
The Military Medal was forwarded to the Commandant 2nd Military District on 15 January, 1920 to be presented to the recipient at a suitable time.  
The British War Medal (33274) and the Victory Medal (32859) along with the Military Medal were issued to wear to Sapper 264 James Savage, 1st Tunnelling Company for serving his country.

The Sydney branch of the Repatriation Commission requested a copy of his service records from Base Records and forwarded on 21 June, 1927.
In 1930 their address was Robey Street, Maroubra with his occupation of wood machinist.

James Savage passed away on 20 September, 1930 aged 45 years.  Family announcements and arrangements were published in the:

Interment took place in Roman Catholic FM Compartment of Botany Cemetery (now Eastern Suburbs Memorial Park) in position no. 96 on 22 September, 1930.
His son James Adam John Savage, born 23 June, 1921, enlisted during World War II from Maroubra at Redfern on 20 May, 1940.  Next-of-kin nominated was his mother Mrs A. Bowerbank.  At the end of the War Corporal No.15268 Savage was discharged on 3 September, 1945 from the 2 Flying Boat Repair Depot.
On 1 April, 1959 his son James Savage of 174 Presidential Avenue, Miranda, NSW wrote to Base Records inquiring about the Military Medal awarded to his father, who has been long deceased, as his family had no details of why he received this medal.  Any information they could give on his service record would be much appreciated.  Base Records replied on 21 April advising that his late father was awarded the Military Medal in the Commonwealth of Australia Gazette No. 119 of the 17th October, 1919.  The citation in connection with this Award was not now available.
Mrs A. Bowerbank wrote to Base Records on 2 April, 1959 from 123 Robey Street, Maroubra, NSW asking if they could please send her late husband’s medals and also records of his illnesses.  She noted that she had re-married a few years later after his death and had been widowed several years again.  A reply dated 23 April, 1919 came from Base Records advising that all medical records of her late husband were held by the Repatriation Department, and all inquiries regarding these records should be made to the Repatriation Department, Sydney.  Her inquiry for his medals had been passed to the medals section for attention.
Both uncollected medals were issued on 9 April, 1959 to his widow Mrs Alice Bowerbank at 123 Robey Street, Maroubra, NSW.

REUNIONS

Former members of the (Alphabet Company) Aust Electrical & Mechanical Mining & Boring Company and Tunnellers’ in Sydney would meet to march in the Anzac Day parade then attend their annual luncheon.  Roll Registers for newsletters of this annual event were kept and his name appears as follows:

        1928
J. Savage
123 Robey St. Maroubra
1TC      
died
© Donna Baldey 2022

www.tunnellers.net

Footnote:  The Accidental Explosion is covered in greater detail and can be located on this website under Western Front / 1ATC 25th April, 1917 – Hill 60 article and articles on the Bridging of the Sambre Canal follow.
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Description


Group portrait of officers, Non-commissioned Officers and sappers of the 1st Australian Mining Corps, from New South Wales unit, prior to their embarkation. Most embarked aboard HMAT (A38) Ulysses on 20 February 1916. 


Identified from left to right,


Eighth row: 283 Spr Alexander Souter; 264 Spr James Savage (later awarded MM);





Daily Telegraph (Sydney) Thursday May 24, 1917:


FALLEN HEROES – LATEST CASUALTIES LIST OF 920


WOUNDED


Spr. J. SAVAGE, Ultimo (gas)							              Article abridged





Sydney Morning Herald Saturday May 10, 1919:


SOLDIERS RETURN BY THE KILDONIAN CASTLE – ENTHUSIASTIC RECEPTION


Five hundred soldiers who went from New South Wales to fight in the great war landed yesterday afternoon.  They had been brought across the waters in the troopship Kildonian Castle.  Nearly all the men commenced the homeward voyage whole England was waiting for the drawing up of the peace terms.  They had helped on French soil in breaking the military power of Germany.


As a prelude to the welcome in the city the troopship was met at the Heads by the Comforts Fund reception committee.  During the exchange of greetings, the Headquarters Australian Army Reserve Band played on the gaily decorated tug.  The band afterwards played at the landing. 


It was expected that the disembarkation would be at a quarter to 3.  Unfortunately, there was a delay and the men did not affect the enthusiasm of the reception outside and inside the Anzac Buffet.  As early as 2 o’clock many hundreds were on to watch for Red Cross motor cars, which had been called to meet the returned men at the Woolloomooloo Bay wharf, and by 4 o’clock the crowd near the Domain Gates and lining the approach to the Anzac Buffet could not have numbered less than 5000.


The first Red Cross car—the Victory—entered the Buffet at 4.30.  Perhaps the two most interesting figures in the Kildonian Castle contingent were Major A.B. Patterson (best known in literary circles as “Banjo” Patterson, and Warrant Officer C.G. Macartney, the famous Australian cricketer.


Mr C.E.W. Bean, the Commonwealth official war correspondent, left the troopship at Melbourne.


DECORATED MEN


Among the winners of the Military Medal were: Sapper J. Savage,			Article abridged





Sydney Morning Herald Monday September 22, 1930:


FUNERALS


SAVAGE. –The Relatives and Friends of Mrs J. SAVAGE and FAMILY, of Morrie, Robey-street, Maroubra, are kindly invited to attend the Funeral of her late beloved HUSBAND and their FATHER, James; to leave St Aidan’s Church, Maroubra, THIS (Monday) AFTERNOON, at 3 o’clock for the Catholic Cemetery Botany.  Motor Funeral.


F. BYRNES and CO. LTD


Funeral Directors, City


SAVAGE. –The Relatives and Friends of Mrs ANNIE SAVAGE, Mr M. SAVAGE, Mr and Mrs C.V. MOORE, Mr F. SAVAGE and Mr and Mrs S. FARRELL, are kindly invited to attend the Funeral of their late beloved SON and BROTHER, James Savage; to leave St Aidan’s Church, Maroubra, THIS (Monday) AFTERNOON, at 3 o’clock for the Catholic Cemetery Botany.  Motor Funeral.


F. BYRNES and CO. LTD


SAVAGE. –The Relatives and Friends of Mr and Mrs A. ANDRES, Mrs F. MILLER, Mr and Mrs A.R. HINWOOD, and Mr and Mrs W. ANDREW ARE KINDLY INVITED TO ATTEND THE Funeral of their late beloved SON-IN-LAW and BROTHER-IN-LAW; to leave St Aidan’s Church, Maroubra, THIS MONDAY, at 3 p.m.  for the Catholic Cemetery, Botany.


F. BYRNES and CO. LTD


Funeral Directors


SAVAGE. –H.A.C.S. SOCIETY, ST AIDAN’S BRANCH, No. 854—Officers and Members of the above Branch are requested to attend the Funeral of their late Bro., JAMES SAVAGE; to leave St Aidan’s Church, Maroubra, THIS (Monday) AFTERNOON at 3 o’clock, for the Catholic Cemetery, Botany.  Motor Funeral.


									F. JONES, Secretary.


									J. LYNCH, President








